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 AGENDA  
FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF 

THE LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION 
 

Thursday, February 22, 2018 at 2:30 pm 
 

Coliseum Commission Room1 
3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA 90037 

 
In compliance with Government Code Section 54957.5, nonexempt writings that are distributed to all, or a majority of all, of the Coliseum Commission members 
by any person in connection with a matter subject to discussion or consideration at an open meeting of the Coliseum Commission, are disclosable public records 
under the California Public Records Act. These public records may be viewed at 3911 S. Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA 90037, at the web page 
http://lamcc.lacounty.gov/Meetings or at the scheduled meeting. In addition, if you would like a copy of any record related to an item on the agenda, please 
contact Ms. Elida Flores, eflores@bos.lacounty.gov, (213) 893-0202. 
 

(POSTED: Friday, February 16, 2018 at 2:30 p.m.) 

 
MEMBERS: 
 
City of Los Angeles    Mr. Curren D. Price, Jr., President 
      Mr. Solomon Rivera 
      Mr. Marqueece Harris-Dawson, Alternate 
 
State of California    Ms. Mona Pasquil Rogers, Vice President 
      Mr. Mark E. Pulido, Alternate 
 
County of Los Angeles    Mr. Mark Ridley-Thomas 
      Ms. Janice Hahn 
      Ms. Anita DeFrantz, Alternate 
 
State Senate     Mr. Ricardo Lara2 
 
State Assembly     Mr. Reginald B. Jones-Sawyer, Sr. 2  
 
STAFF: 
 
Interim Chief Administrative Officer  Mr. Al Naipo 
Treasurer     Mr. Joseph Kelly 
Controller     Mr. John Naimo 
Co-Counsel     Ms. Noreen Vincent 
Co-Counsel     Ms. Teresa Lujan 
Co-Counsel     Ms. Sonia L. Chan 
 
At the discretion of the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission (“Commission”), all items appearing in 
this Agenda, whether or not expressly listed for action, may be deliberated and may be subject to action by 
the Commission. 
 
 

 
                                                           
1 Coliseum South Offices, Enter property at Gate 29 
2 Ex-officio (non-voting) 
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OPEN SESSION 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PRESIDENT’S COMMENTS 

4. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING OF OCTOBER 30, 2017 

6. APPOINTMENT OF SECRETARY (Discussion and possible action) 

7. ELECTION OF COLISEUM COMMISSION OFFICERS (Discussion and possible action) 

8. INTERIM CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER’S REPORT (Receive and file) 

9. COLISEUM COMMISSION FINANCIAL REPORT (Receive and file) 

A. Statement of Receipts and Disbursements 

B. Statement of Budget to Actual  

C. Cash Flow Forecast 

D. FY 2017 Audit of Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission  

10. LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (Receive and file) 

A. Event operations 
B. Coliseum planned and in-progress projects 
C. Other items 

11. UPDATE ON LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL SPORTS ARENA REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT 
(Receive and file) 

12. UPDATE ON EXPOSITION PARK CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (Receive and file) 

13. CONSIDERATION OF PUBLIC INTEREST EVENT – Annual July 4th Fireworks Show and 
Community Festival produced by the City of Los Angeles Ninth District                   
(Discussion and possible action) 

14. CONSIDERATION OF PUBLIC INTEREST EVENT – Memorial Day ceremony and recognition 
of the World War I Centennial (Discussion and possible action) 

15. CONSIDERATION OF THE COMMISSION’S 2018 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE  
(Discussion and possible action) 

16. ADJOURNMENT 

Next regular meeting: March 22, 2018 
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NOTICE: All meetings of the Coliseum Commission are open to the public. A member of the public may 
address the Commission on any Agenda item, and a request to address the Commission must be 
submitted in person prior to the start of the meeting. The Commission may limit the public input on any 
item, based on the number of people requesting to speak and the business of the Commission. In addition, 
a member of the public has the right to address the Commission on items of interest which is within the 
subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission during the Public Comment portion of the Agenda. 

 
As a covered entity under Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum 
Commission does not discriminate on the basis of disability and upon request, will provide reasonable 
accommodation to ensure equal access to its programs, services and activities. Sign language interpreters, 
assistive listening devices, or other auxiliary aids and/or services may be provided upon request. To ensure 
availability of services, please make your request at least three (3) business days prior to the meeting you 
wish to attend by contacting Ms. Elida Flores at (213) 893-0202. 
 
Persons having matters before the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission should read the following 
notice in connection with prohibited contributions to members of this agency. 
 

NOTICE TO PERSONS HAVING MATTERS BEFORE THIS 
AGENCY REGARDING PROHIBITED CONTRIBUTIONS 

 
Any person to a proceeding before this Commission involving a license, permit, or other entitlement 
(including all entitlements for land use, contracts -- other than competitively bid labor or personal 
employment contracts -- and all franchises) must disclose on the record any contributions in excess of 
$250.00 to any elected or appointed officer of the Commission, including alternates, made within the 
preceding 12 months by the party, or his or her agent. The California contributions limitations of 
Government Code Section 84308 also prohibit contributions in excess of $250.00 for three months 
following the date of any final decision rendered by the Commission in such proceeding. Commissioners 
who have received such contributions within the past 12 months may not participate in the proceeding. 
Also, Commissioners may not receive such contributions while a matter affecting a contributor is pending. 
 
Si requiere servicios de traduccion, favor de notificar a la oficina 3 dias de trabajo (72 horas) antes del 
evento. Si necesita ayuda con esta agenda, por favor llame a nuestra oficina al (213) 893-0202. 
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MINUTES 
OF SPECIAL MEETING OF 

LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION 
 

Monday, October 30, 2017 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The special meeting of the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 
(the “Commission”) was held in the Coliseum Commission Room on 
Monday, October 30, 2017, and was called to order at 2:39 p.m. by 
President PRICE. 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Mr. Curren D. Price, Jr., President 
 Mr. Mark Ridley-Thomas 
 Mr. Mark E. Pulido, (Alternate) 
 
 Three (3) and a quorum 
  
ABSENT: Ms. Mona Pasquil Rogers, Vice President 
 Mr. Reginald B. Jones-Sawyer, Sr. (Non-voting) 
 Mr. Ricardo Lara (Non-voting) 

 Ms. Janice Hahn (Alternate) 
 Mr. Marqueece Harris-Dawson (Alternate) 
   
STAFF PRESENT: Mr. Robert E. Osborne, Secretary and CAO 

Ms. Noreen Vincent, Co-Counsel 
Ms. Teresa Lujan, Co-Counsel 
Mr. Thomas J. Faughnan, Co-Counsel 
Mr. Erik J. Conard, Co-Counsel 
Ms. Sonia Chan, Co-Counsel 
Ms. Rachelle Anema, Controller 

   
ALSO PRESENT: Mr. Dan Stimmler 
 Mr. Matt Curran 
 Ms. Jacquelyn Horton 

         Ms. Diane Sher 
 Mr. Kevin Daly 
 Mr. Al Naipo 
 Ms. Laurie M. Stone 

 Mr. Brian C. League 
Ms. Ana Lasso 
Ms. Lori Glasgow 
Ms. Claudia Gutierrez 
Mr. Thomas Sayles 
Mr. David Galaviz 

  
3. The president did not comment. 

 
4. There was no general public comment. 

 
5. APPROVED on motion of Commissioner PULIDO, seconded by 

Commissioner RIDLEY-THOMAS, and carried unanimously, the minutes 
of the Commission’s regular meeting held on September 28, 2017. 
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6. RECEIVED and FILED by unanimous consent, there being no objection, 

the Controller’s Report. 
 

7. RECEIVED and FILED by unanimous consent, there being no objection, 
the General Manager’s Report. 
 

8. Item 8 was taken up following closed session. 
 

9. By unanimous consent, there being no objection, the Commission: 
 
CONFIRMED that the Fifth Addendum to the previously certified final 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Los Angeles Memorial 
Coliseum Renovation Project (the Project) has been completed in 
compliance with the judgment and analysis of the Los Angeles Memorial 
Coliseum Commission (Commission); 
 
FOUND that the Commission has reviewed and considered the 
information contained in the Fifth Addendum, as well as the EIR and 
Addenda previously certified by the Commission prior to approving the 
Extension of Construction Hours and Optional Haul Route; 
 
APPROVED the Fifth Addendum; 
 
ADOPTED the proposed CEQA Findings for the Project; 
 
ADOPTED the proposed revision to Mitigation Measure 1 for the project 
as set forth in the Fifth Addendum; and 
 
APPROVED the Temporary Extension of Construction Hours and 
Optional Haul Route for the Project subject to: (a) the additional 
requirements provided in the revised Mitigation Measure 1; and (b) all 
conditions that may be required by the Los Angeles Board of Police 
Commissioners for the temporary variance from Los Angeles Municipal 
Code Section 41.40. 
 

The Commission entered closed session at 2:54 p.m. 
 

CS-1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
(CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(d)(1)) 
 
Case: Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission, et al. v. Lynch, et 
al., BC 472814 
 
No reportable action was taken. 
 

CS-2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT (CALIFORNIA 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957) 
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Title: Chief Administrative Officer 
 
The Commission has voted to recommend to the County's Executive 
Officer that Al Naipo be named as the Commission's Interim Chief 
Administrative Officer effective November 7, 2017, pursuant to the 
Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Administrative and 
Supportive Services Between the Los Angeles County Executive 
Office and the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission. The vote 
was unanimous with Commissioners Price, Ridley-Thomas, and 
Pulido present. 

The Commission re-entered open session at 3:16 p.m. 
 
8. RECEIVED and FILED by unanimous consent, there being no 

objection, the Update on Exposition Park Construction Projects. 
 
10. ADJOURNED at 3:21 p.m. 
 

****************** 
 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Interim Chief Administrative Officer 
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EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS 
STATE SENATOR 
RICARDO LARA 

ASSEMBLYMEMBER 
REGINALD JONES-SAWYER 

 

AL NAIPO 
INTERIM 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

 

COMMISSION MEMBERS 
 

CITY OF LOS ANGELES 
CURREN D. PRICE, JR. 

PRESIDENT 
 

SOLOMON RIVERA 
 

MARQUEECE HARRIS-DAWSON 
(Alternate) 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
MONA PASQUIL ROGERS 

VICE PRESIDENT 
 

MARK E. PULIDO (Alternate) 
 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS 

 

JANICE HAHN  
 

ANITA DEFRANTZ (Alternate) 

 

 
 

SITE OF 1932 AND 1984 
OLYMPICS ATHLETICS COMPETITION 
OPENING & CLOSING CEREMONIES 

 

SITE OF 1984 OLYMPICS 
BOXING COMPETITION 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM #6 

 
APPOINTMENT OF COMMISSION SECRETARY 

 
AL NAIPO 

 
 
Proposed Action: (Discussion and possible action) 
 
Overview: 
 
At a special meeting of the Coliseum Commission on October 30, 2017, the Commission appointed Al 
Naipo to serve as Interim Chief Administrative Officer of the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission, 
effective November 07, 2017. At that time, a Commission Secretary was not appointed. 
 
Section 14 of the Commission Bylaws state, “The Commission shall appoint a Secretary, who may, but not 
need, be a member of the Commission.” 
 
While not required, the pattern and practice of the Commission has been to appoint the  
Chief Administrative Officer as Secretary of the Commission. 
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COMMISSION MEMBERS 
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OLYMPICS ATHLETICS COMPETITION 
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BOXING COMPETITION 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM #7 

 
ELECTION OF LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISISON OFFICERS 

 
AL NAIPO 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: (Discussion and possible action) 
 
Overview: 
 
Coliseum Commission Bylaws state, “The members of the Commission shall elect the President and Vice-
President at the first meeting of the Commission held in each calendar year to serve until the election of 
their successors.“ 
 
Staff recommends that the Commission continue this item to its next meeting. 
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AGENDA ITEM #8 
 

INTERIM CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 

AL NAIPO 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: RECEIVE and FILE the interim chief administrative officer’s report. 
 

A. First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum    
Commission Management Agreement of 2013 
 
The First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 
Management Agreement of 2013 was approved as required by all three member agencies last 
year.  
 
The Amendment was executed on January 4, 2018. As such, the Commission’s governance 
structure is now comprised of six (6) voting members, three (3) alternates, and two (2) ex-officio 
non-voting members. A quorum of four (4) Commissioners is required to transact business (see 
Attachment 8.1). 
 

B. Public Interest Event- 11th Annual Walk for Wishes 
 
On September 28, 2017, the Commission unanimously approved the 11th Annual Walk for Wishes 
as a Commission Event pursuant to Section 6.1 of the Lease and Agreement with the University of 
Southern California. 
 
The event will take place on Saturday, April 7, 2017. It serves as both a fundraising walk-a-thon 
and a community engagement festival. (see Attachment 8.2). 
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C. Memorial Sports Arena Inventory Update 
 

      The historic items that have been preserved from the Memorial Sports Arena’s demolition were 
inventoried again on January 4, 2018 (see Attachment 8.3).  

The Los Angeles Football Club plans to repurpose a few of the items in the Banc of California 
Stadium and has requested that any items not used for that purpose or held by the Coliseum 
Commission be donated or discarded. Staff recommends that the Chief Administrative Officer meet 
with LAFC representatives to determine the disposition of those items.  

D. Proposed Court of Honor Inductees 
 
Currently, the Commission is considering five possible additions to the Court of Honor. They are 
former Los Angeles Mayor Tom Bradley, former Los Angeles Raiders Marcus Allen, Michael 
Haynes, Rod Martin, and the 1984 Super Bowl Champion Los Angeles Raiders.  

Private fundraising efforts are underway to pay for the cost of the bronze plaques, estimated at 
about $20,000 each.  

The plaque for Court of Honor Inductee Bruce Springsteen has been installed. However, there is 
no date for the unveiling ceremony as USC and the Commission are awaiting word from band 
members to determine if Mr. Springsteen and or any of the band members will attend.   

E. Coliseum Naming 
 
USC announced on January 29, 2018 that it entered into an agreement with United Airlines to 
rename the stadium, United Airlines Memorial Coliseum, effective August 2019. It is a 16-year deal 
with United Airlines paying $69 million to USC for the naming rights, which is permitted within the 
lease agreement between USC and the Commission.  
 
The agreement stipulates that ‘Memorial Coliseum’ remains a part of any renaming of the 
Coliseum. USC reports that it is working on how that renaming will be visualized at the Coliseum 
and will submit renderings for Commission review, which is also provided for in the lease 
agreement. 
 

F. Coliseum Peristyle Plaza Naming 
 
USC formally announced in January its intent to rename the Coliseum Peristyle Plaza after donors 
Julia and George Argyros. USC confirmed that the donors names would appear on the ends of the 
Peristyle structure facing the field (see Attachment 8.4). The Peristyle structure facing Figueroa 
Street would not contain any such designation related to the renaming. 

G. Coliseum Commission Chief Administrative Officer’s Search 
 
The Executive Office of the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors, responsible for conducting 
the search for a new CAO reports that the search is ongoing and that it is continuing to accept 
applications. 



LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION 

 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS* 
 
Six voting members and three alternates.  The presence of four (4) members of 
the Commission, including any acting alternates present, shall be required to 
constitute a quorum, and a majority vote of all members and acting alternates 
present shall be necessary for the transaction of business.  
 
 
APPOINTMENT* 
 
Commissioners to be appointed as follows: 
 
a. Two members appointed by the Mayor of the City of Los Angeles 
  
b. Two members appointed by the Chairperson of the Board of 

Supervisors of the County of Los Angeles 
  
c. Two members appointed by the Governor of the State of California 
 
Alternates: 
 
a. One member appointed by the President of the Los Angeles City 

Council, 
  
b. One member appointed by the Chairperson of the Board of 

Supervisors of the County of Los Angeles  
  
c. One member appointed by the Governor of the State of California 
 
Each such alternate, acting in an individual capacity, shall have the authority to 
attend, participate in any meeting of the Commission and, when the regular 
member for whom the alternate serves is absent from said meeting, vote at said 
meeting.   
 
The University of Southern California (USC), as tenant of the Coliseum pursuant 
to the terms of the Lease and Agreement between USC and the Commission, 
shall have the right to present to the member agencies of the Commission at 
least three (3) persons for membership to the Commission. Each party to this 
agreement shall consider USC's recommendations in good faith, but shall not be 
obligated to appoint any such person to the Commission. 
 

http://bos.co.la.ca.us/Rosters/rptRosterPage.cfm?Committee=15&COMM_TITL=Los%20Angeles%20Memorial%20Coliseum%20Commission&retpage=rptCommList.cfm
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TERM OF OFFICE* 
 
All members and alternate members of the Commission shall serve at the 
pleasure of the respective appointing authority. 
 
 
COMPENSATION* 
 
None. 
 
 
MEETINGS* 
 
The regular meetings of the Commission shall be held on the fourth Thursday of 
each and every month except July and November, commencing at the hour of 
2:30 p.m. at the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission Room, unless 
cancelled by the Commission or the Commission adopts an alternate schedule. 
In no event shall the Commission meet fewer than once each quarter. If any 
regular meeting day falls upon a holiday, the regular meeting of the Commission 
shall be cancelled. 
 
 
DUTIES* 
 
The Commission shall have power, upon an affirmative vote of at least four (4) 
members of the Commission at a meeting of the Commission, to negotiate for a 
contract to operate, manage and control parking lots or parking areas, either 
within or outside the boundaries of Exposition Park in the City, to be used in 
connection with the activities of any of the Commission's facilities or structures in 
Exposition Park in the City, including the Coliseum and Sports Arena. The power 
to acquire parking facilities by condemnation is expressly withheld from the 
Commission. Title to all parking lots or parking areas acquired by the 
Commission shall vest in the District upon the expiration or termination of this 
agreement or any extension thereof, subject to the terms of agreement. 
 
 
OATH 
 
Not required. 
 
 



 
 
 
 
AUTHORITY* 
 

• Established December 30, 1955 by a Joint Exercise of Powers 
Management Agreement between the County of Los Angeles, the City of 
Los Angeles and the California Science Center (Sixth District Agricultural 
Association). Amended and Restated Management Agreement of 1976 

 
• Board Order No. 66 of January 12, 1988; Agreement as amended extends 

to December 30, 2005 
 

• Section 8300 of the Government Code 
 

• Board Order No. 30 of October 15, 2013 
 

• Board Order No. 15 of July 18, 2017 
 
 
 
 
Created on:  12/30/1955 
 
*Revised:      01/04/2018 



LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION 
3911 South Figueroa Street 

Los Angeles, CA 90037 

January 25, 2018 

Designation of Public Interest Event Checklist 
 

REQUESTOR INFORMATION 
Company name:  Make-A-Wish Greater Los Angeles 

Address:  
11390 W. Olympic Boulevard, Suite 300 
Los Angeles, CA 90064 

Telephone number:  (310) 788-9474 

Website:  www.wishla.org 

Event name:  11th Annual Walk for Wishes 

Event date:  Saturday, April 7, 2018 (One Day) 

 

REQUIREMENT CHECKLIST 

 RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL AL NAIPO, INTERIM CAO 

 Organization is a 501(c)(3) tax-exempt nonprofit Tax ID Number: 95-4107024 

 Organization’s current board members and management team Bo Pearl, Chair; Neal Aton, CEO 

 Organization’s mission statement Grant wishes of children with life-threatening medical 
conditions and enrich the human experience 

 Contact name Frances Mojica, fmojica@la.wish.org 

 Request presented to Commission 180 days in advance 194 days in advance 

 Description of event 2,000-3,000 participants; expense budget $47,500 to 
raise $280,500; radio and television coverage 

 Reason(s) why event should be considered as rent-free 3 decades granting wishes; community services 
reaching more than 12,000 Los Angeles County 
residents per year 

 Why the Memorial Coliseum? Centrally located; kids-safe; LA Rams and USC 
students participate; increase the appeal 

 Preferred date(s) In: 4/6/18    Out: 4/7/18 (One Event Day) 

 Copy of Federal Form 990 On file 

 Request complete  

 Request presented to Coliseum Commission for approval September 28, 2017 

 Request approved by Coliseum Commission September 28, 2017 

 Commission approval communicated to USC  
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Memorial Sports Arena Inventory Schedule 
January 04, 2018 
 

Location: 

Commission Offices: 
 
• Richard M. Nixon portrait 
• Richard M. Nixon plaque 
• John F. Kennedy portrait 
 
 
Banc of California Stadium: 
 
• John F. Kennedy plaque 
• 2001-2002 Seismic Upgrade plaque 
• Al Franken recognition plaque 
• XXIII Olympiad plaque 
• History to Construct the Arena plaque 
• 450th Anniversary of the Reformation plaque 
• Indoor arena clock 
• Memorial to War Veterans display 
• 8 Olympic benches 
• Exterior building letters “LOSANGELESMEMORIALSPORTSARENA” 
 
 
Rancho Cucamonga: 
 
• 4 sets of 4 seats 
• 10 old lights 
• Letters from North, East, and South entrances 
• One drinking fountain 
• 4 hockey goals, one missing net 
• 5 old speakers 
• 10 turnstiles 
• Loge signs 
• Box office sign 
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AGENDA ITEM #9 

 
QUARTERLY COMMISSION FINANCIAL REPORT 

 
RACHELLE ANEMA 

 
 
Proposed Action: RECEIVE AND FILE the financial report for the quarter ended December 31, 2017 
 
A.  Statement of Receipts and Disbursements (Attachment 9.1) 
 
The Commission’s controller has released the Commission’s statement of receipts and disbursements for 
the quarter ended December 31, 2017. During the three (3) month period, the Commission received 
$1,150,042 and disbursed $198,612, resulting in a remaining cash balance of $1,251,294. 
 
B.  Statement of Budget vs. Actual (Attachment 9.2) 
 
For the quarter ended December 31, 2017, the Commission was under budget for all revenue sources and 
funding uses. The Commission received $1,020,933 of unbudgeted revenue. 
 
C. Cash Flow Forecast (Attachment 9.3) 
 
The cash flow forecast as of December 31, 2017 indicates that the Commission and Association will have 
adequate cash flow for the next 5 years.  Actual expenses could change these projections. 
 
D. FY 2017 Audit of Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission (Attachment 9.4) 
 
The firm of BCA Watson Rice LLP released the findings of its FY 2017 audit of the basic financial 
statements of the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission on January 5, 2018.  
 
 



Coliseum 
Association L.A. Coliseum

 Fund V86 Fund V87 Total

Beginning Cash Balance as of October 1, 2017 146,326.28$         153,537.11$      299,863.39$     

Receipts:

Interest 10/01/17 134.96                 209.55               344.51              
Funds Received from USC for Operating Expenses 10/18/17 29,724.00          29,724.00         
Funds Received from USC for Retiree Health 10/18/17 12,995.68          12,995.68         
Interest 11/01/17 232.97                 332.63               565.60              
Restitution 11/13/17 25.00                 25.00                
Restitution 11/13/17 25.00                 25.00                
Subpoena Document Duplication 11/27/17 15.00                 15.00                
EDD Tax Refund 11/27/17 312.00               312.00              
Subpoena Document Duplication 11/27/17 15.00                 15.00                
Funds Received from USC for Operating Expenses 11/29/17 29,724.00          29,724.00         
Funds Received from USC for Retiree Health 11/29/17 12,995.68          12,995.68         
Settlements 11/30/17 1,020,002.68     1,020,002.68    
Interest 12/01/17 152.75 200.79               353.54              
Restitution 12/04/17 225.00               225.00              
Funds Received from USC for Operating Expenses 12/15/17 29,724.00          29,724.00         
Funds Received from USC for Retiree Health 12/15/17 12,995.68          12,995.68         

Total Beginning Cash Balance and Receipts: 146,846.96$         1,303,058.80$   1,449,905.76$  

Disbursements:

Burke, Williams & Sorensen 10/01/17 3,794.97          3,794.97           
Burke, Williams & Sorensen 10/01/17 4,740.68          4,740.68           
Burke, Williams & Sorensen 10/01/17 761.60              761.60             
I.A.T.S.E. Local NO. 33 10/11/17 6,167.92          6,167.92           
I.A.T.S.E. Local NO. 33 10/11/17 688.16              688.16             
Legends Hospitality 10/11/17 77.09                77.09               
California Public Employees Retirement System 10/16/17 8,772.52          8,772.52           
Burke, Williams & Sorensen 10/16/17 7,206.45          7,206.45           
Auditor-Controller 10/20/17 1,582.00          1,582.00           
Burke, Williams & Sorensen 11/13/17 14,100.03        14,100.03         
State of California 11/15/17 50.00                50.00               
California Public Employees Retirement System 11/15/17 12,995.68        12,995.68         
California Public Employees Retirement System 11/15/17 8,772.52          8,772.52           
I.A.T.S.E. Local NO. 33 11/15/17 6,163.63          6,163.63           
I.A.T.S.E. Local NO. 33 11/15/17 692.45              692.45             
Legends Hospitality 11/15/17 101.39              101.39             
Board of Supervisors 11/27/17 70,676.90        70,676.90         
Auditor-Controller 11/27/17 6,213.92          6,213.92           
California Public Employees Retirement System 12/05/17 12,995.68        12,995.68         
California Public Employees Retirement System 12/05/17 13.57                13.57               
California Public Employees Retirement System 12/11/17 8,772.52          8,772.52           
I.A.T.S.E. Local NO. 33 12/11/17 6,672.66          6,672.66           
I.A.T.S.E. Local NO. 33 12/11/17 183.42              183.42             
BCA WATSON RICE LLP 12/17/17 3,132.00          3,132.00           
California Public Employees Retirement System 12/27/17 13,284.40          13,284.40         

Total Disbursements: -$                      198,612.16$      198,612.16$     
 

Ending Cash Balance as of December 31, 2017 146,846.96$        1,104,446.64$  1,251,293.60$  

Prepared by KK 01/08/18
Los Angeles County
Department of Auditor-Controller
Accounting Division

LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
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Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission and Association
Cash Flow Forecast
For the Five Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2022

FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022

Sources of cash:
Operating costs - USC 344,849$      367,390$      378,411$      378,411$      378,411$     
Retiree health insurance 168,800        168,800        168,800        168,800        168,800        
Settlement Income 2,000,000     
Interest -                -                -               

Total sources of cash 2,513,649     536,190        547,211        547,211        547,211        

Uses of cash:
Administrative support services 296,050        303,890        314,411        314,411        314,411        
Retiree health insurance 168,800        168,800        168,800        168,800        168,800        
IATSE pension liability 82,273          65,953          -                -                -               
Pension expense - CalPERS 105,270        152,000        203,000        234,000        275,000        
Legal fees 1,027,712     -                -               -               -               

Auditor-Controller services 40,000          40,000          40,000          40,000          40,000          
Annual and tax preparation fees 17,400          18,500          19,000          19,000          19,000          
Miscellaneous 3,237            5,000            5,000            5,000            5,000            

Total uses of cash 1,740,742     754,143        750,211        781,211        822,211        

Increase / (Decrease) in cash 772,907        (217,953)       (203,000)       (234,000)       (275,000)      

Cash balance, beginning of year 363,862        1,136,769     918,816        715,816        481,816        

Cash balance, end of year 1,136,769$   918,816$      715,816$      481,816$      206,816$     

All amounts are estimates based on information available as of 12/31/2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

 
To the Honorable Members 
Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 
Los Angeles, California 
 
 
Report on the Basic Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum 
Commission (the Commission), which comprise the statement of net position (deficit) as of June 30, 2017 and 
the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position (deficit), and cash flows for 
the year then ended, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Commission’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these basic financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
basic financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the basic financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the basic financial statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 
 

http://www.bcawatsonrice.com/
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Commission as of June 30, 2017, and the changes in financial position and cash flows 
for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Prior Year Comparative Information 
 
We have previously audited the basic financial statements of the Commission, and we expressed an 
unmodified audit opinion in our report dated January 9, 2017.  In our opinion, the summarized comparative 
information presented herein for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, is consistent, in all material respects, 
with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.  
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) on pages 3 through 7 and the Required Supplementary Information on 
pages 25 through 26 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 5, 2018 
on our consideration of the Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 

The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
 
 
 

 
Torrance, California 
January 5, 2018 
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As management of the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission (the Coliseum Commission) and the Los 
Angeles Memorial Coliseum Association, Inc. (the Association) (hereafter collectively referred to as the 
Commission), we offer readers of the Commission’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis 
of the financial activities of the Commission for the year ended June 30, 2017.  The information contained in 
the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) should be considered in conjunction with the information 
contained in the Commission’s financial statements.   
 
This discussion is intended to: 
 

 Assist the reader in understanding significant financial issues 
 Provide an overview of the Commission’s financial activities 
 Identify changes in the Commission’s financial position 

 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 The Commission’s liabilities exceeded its assets as of June 30, 2017 by $9.24 million. The 
Commission had investment in capital assets at year-end of $107,500.  The unrestricted component 
of net deficit was $9.35 million. See further discussion on page 7. 

 
 The Commission’s total net deficit, including all activities, increased by $799,082 as a result of 

operations compared with fiscal year 2015-2016. 
 

 Total operating revenues decreased by $624,805 while operating expenses increased by $481,182 in 
fiscal year 2016-2017 compared to the prior year. 

 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Commission’s audited financial 
statements, which are comprised of the 1) basic financial statements; and 2) notes to the basic financial 
statements. This report also includes the required supplementary information. 
 
The Commission’s financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles.  It is designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Commission’s 
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. Additional information on the Commission’s 
significant accounting policies can be found in Note 1 on pages 11-14 of this report. 
 

 The Statement of Net Position (Deficit) presents information on all of the Commission’s assets, 
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflow of resources, and resulting net position.   
Over time, an increase or decrease in net position may serve as a useful indicator of the 
Commission’s financial position.   

 
 The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position (Deficit) present 

information showing how the Commission’s net position (deficit) changed during the most recent 
fiscal year.  All changes in fund net position (deficit) are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing or related cash flows.  Thus, revenue and 
expenses are reported in these statements for some items that will result in cash flows in future 
periods.   
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 The Statement of Cash Flows relates to the flows of cash and cash equivalents.  Consequently, 
only transactions that affect the Commission’s cash accounts are recorded in these statements.  A 
reconciliation is provided at the bottom of the Statement of Cash Flows to assist in the understanding 
of the difference between cash flows from operating activities and operating income or loss.   
 

A blended component unit is an organization that is legally separate from the Commission, but is at the 
same time related to the Commission financially (i.e., the Commission is financially accountable for it) or the 
nature of its relationship with the Commission is so significant that its exclusion would cause the 
Commission’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum 
Association, Inc. is a blended component unit of the Commission and its financial activity has been included in 
the Commission’s financial statements. 
 
The Commission’s financial statements are located on pages 8-10 of this report. The component unit 
combining statement is discussed in Note 2 starting on page 15. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of 
the data provided in the Commission’s financial statements. Notes to the financial statements are on pages 
11-24. 
 
Other Information 
 
In addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required 
supplementary information concerning the Commission’s net pension liability and related ratios, pension 
contributions and progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits and other postemployment 
benefits to former employees. 
  
 
FINANCIAL ANAYLSIS 
 
Condensed Statement of Net Position 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. 
As shown in the table below, the Commission’s liabilities exceeded its assets by $9.24 million at June 30, 
2017. 
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2017 2016
Assets:

Current assets 306,267  $         562,430  $         
Deferred rent receivable 658,292             675,746             
Capital assets, net of depreciation 107,500             107,500             

Total Assets 1,072,059  $      1,345,676  $      

Deferred Outflows of Resources 594,623  $         205,793             

Liabilities:
Current and other liabilities 25,486  $           145,340  $         
Noncurrent liabilties 10,648,252        9,397,883          

Total Liabilities 10,673,738  $    9,543,223  $      

Deferred Inflows of Resources 232,404  $         448,724  $         

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 107,500  $         47,784  $           
Unrestricted (Deficit) (9,346,960)         (8,488,162)         

Total Net Position (Deficit) (9,239,460)  $     (8,440,378)  $     

Table 1
Condensed Statement of Net Position (Deficit)

June 30, 2017 and 2016

 
 

 
Significant changes in assets and liabilities included the following: 
 
Current Assets 
 
Current assets decreased by $256,163, or 45.55%, from the prior year largely due to a reduction in cash and 
other receivables.  
 
Liabilities 
 
Liabilities increased by $1.13 million, or 11.85%, from the prior year primarily due to the increase in the net 
pension liability, an increase in the postretirement healthcare liability and an increase in the long term debt. 
   
Deferred Outflows of Resources / Deferred Inflows of Resources  
 
Under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 68 and 71, the Commission is required to defer 
the recognition of changes in investment gain/loss, actuarial assumptions and methods, and plan benefits. At 
June 30, 2017, the Commission reported deferred outflows of resources of $594,623 and deferred inflows of 
resources of $232,404. 
 
The Commission’s total net position consists of the following two components: 
 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
 
As of June 30, 2017, the Commission had $107,500 investment in capital assets, all related to the freeway 
sign property. 
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Unrestricted Net Position (Deficit) 
 
The Commission’s total unrestricted net deficit is $9.35 million. The deficit closely parallels the noncurrent 
liabilities for net pension liability, postretirement healthcare, straight-line rent accrual, and the USC line of 
credit which total $10.33 million.  The net deficit is expected to be covered by future USC rent revenue, 
except for the $1.82 million USC line of credit and the $2.76 million net pension liability. 
 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position (Deficit) 
 
The following table presents condensed information showing how the Commission’s net position changed 
during the recent fiscal year as compared with the prior fiscal year.  
 

 
 
Revenue Highlights 
  
Total revenues decreased by $259,805 when compared with the prior year. This is primarily due to the Kinetic 
lease being paid off, partially offset by an increase in the operating revenue provided by USC and settlement 
income received during fiscal year 2016-2017. 
 
The agreement with USC requires semi-annual lease payments from USC on behalf of the Commission 
beginning in 2013 and, assuming the exercise of options, USC will continue making payments through 2054. 
During fiscal year 2016-2017, the Commission recognized rental income from this sublease in the amount of 
$1.34 million for the rent due to the State.  The Commission has also recorded lease revenue of $498,369 
from USC for the Commission operating expenses and the postretirement healthcare expenditures, and 
$364,597 million in settlement revenue. 
 
Expense Highlights 
 
Total expenses increased by $190,491, or 6.75%, when compared with the prior year.  This increase was 
primarily the result of increased legal expenses. 

2017 2016
Revenues:

Rent 1,342,258$        2,000,190$        
Administrative services 498,369             462,559             
Settlement revenue 364,597             -                    
Other 6,820                9,100                

Total revenues 2,212,044          2,471,849          

Expenses:
Rent 1,248,936       1,248,936       
General operating 1,434,416       953,234          
Pension expense 209,981          493,127             
Other 117,793          125,338          

Total expenses 3,011,126          2,820,635          

Change in net position (deficit) (799,082)$          (348,786)$          

June 30, 2017 and 2016

Table 2
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes Net Position (Deficit)
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The Commission’s capital assets as of June 30, 2017 were $107,500. Capital assets included land related to 
the freeway sign parcel.   
 
Debt Administration 
 
The Commission’s liabilities for long-term debt increased by $47,676 or 2.61% when compared with the prior 
year.  This is primarily due to the increase in the USC line of credit by $107,392. This increase was partially 
offset by the $59,717 full payment of the video board note payable during the year. Specific long-term debt 
changes are discussed in Note 5. 
 
The Commission does not plan to issue any new bonds or other debt instruments in the near future. 
 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS  
 
In fiscal year 2017-2018, the Commission accepted a settlement agreement regarding a lawsuit brought 
against former promoters hired by the Commission.  The Commission received $2 million in November 2017 
and will receive an additional $1.5 million over the next 4 years. 
 
 
CONTACTING THE COMMISSION’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

 
This financial report is designed to provide a general review of the Commission’s finances for those with an 
interest in the Commission’s finances and to show the Commission’s accountability for the money it receives. 
If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact Mr. Al Naipo, Chief 
Administrative Officer, at anaipo@bos.lacounty.gov or at Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission, 3911 
South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, California 90037-1207. 
 

mailto:anaipo@bos.lacounty.gov
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Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission

Statement of Net Position (Deficit)
June 30, 2017
(With comparative totals for June 30, 2016)

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources (Note 1) 2017 2016
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 277,619$               534,105$               
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of 

$93,828 in 2017 and 2016
Other receivables 2,216                     1,893                     
Prepaid expenses 26,432                   26,432                   

Total current assets 306,267                 562,430                 

Noncurrent Assets
Deferred rent receivable (Note 8) 658,292                 675,846                 
Capital assets, net (Note 4) 107,500                 107,500                 

Total assets 1,072,059$            1,345,776$            

Deferred Outflows of Resources
   Deferred pension related items (Note 6) 594,623$               205,793$               

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,666,682$            1,551,569$            

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position (Note 1)
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 25,486$                 85,624$                 
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) -                         59,716                   

Total current liabilities 25,486                   145,340                 

Noncurrent Liabilities
Postretirement healthcare plan (Note 7) 3,833,703              3,480,140              
Net pension liability (Note 6) 2,756,150              2,013,993              
Straight-line rent accrual (Note 8) 1,914,894              1,965,958              
Other long-term liabilties (Note 9) 319,436                 221,115                 
Long-term debt, less current portion (Note 5) 1,824,069              1,716,677              

Total liabilities 10,673,738$          9,543,223$            

Deferred Inflows of Resources
   Deferred pension related items (Note 6) 232,404$               448,724$               

Net Position (Deficit)
Net investment in capital assets 107,500                 47,784                   
Unrestricted deficit (9,346,960)             (8,488,162)             

Total net position (deficit) (9,239,460)             (8,440,378)             
Total liabilities, deferred Inflows of resources and net position (deficit) 1,666,682$            1,551,569$            

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (Deficit)
Year Ended June 30, 2017
(With comparative totals for year ended June 30, 2016)

2017 2016
Operating revenues (Note 1): 

Rent (Note 8) 1,342,258$        2,000,190$        
Administrative services 498,369             462,559             
Other 1,145                 3,828                 

Total operating revenues 1,841,772          2,466,577          

Operating expenses:
Retiree healthcare (Note 7) 520,266             490,774             
Rent (Note 8) 1,248,936          1,248,936          
General operating expenses 6,510                 4,903                 
Professional 317,866             335,517             
Legal 589,774             122,040             

Total operating expenses 2,683,352          2,202,170          
Total operating gain (loss) (841,580)            264,407             

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income 5,675                 5,272                 
Interest expense (117,793)            (125,338)            
Settlement income, net 364,597             -                     
Pension Expense (Note 6) (209,981)            (493,127)            

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses), net 42,498               (613,193)            
Change in net position (799,082)            (348,786)            

Net position (deficit), beginning of year (8,440,378)         (8,091,592)         
Net position (deficit), end of year (9,239,460)$       (8,440,378)$       

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2017
(With comparative totals for year ended June 30, 2016)

2017 2016
Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Receipts from customers 488,886$         566,387$       
Payments to suppliers (974,288)          (568,675)       
Payments to employees (141,356)          (209,981)       

Net cash used in operating activities (626,758)          (212,269)       

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest received 5,675               5,271             
Cash received on settlement 364,597           -                

Net cash provided by investing activities 370,272           5,271             

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (256,486)          (206,998)       

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 534,105           741,103         
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year 277,619$         534,105$       

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used In Operating
Activities
Operating income (loss) (841,580)$        264,407$       
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash used in

operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in assets:
   Deferred rent receivable 17,554             (132,445)       
   Other receivables (323)                 100,220         
Increase (decrease) in liabilities and deferred amounts:

Accounts payable and other accrued expenses (60,138)            (24,149)         
Post retirment health care 353,563           330,197         
Net pension liability 532,176           287,579         
Straight-line rent accrual (51,064)            98,936           
Other long-term liabilities 98,321             (66,792)         
Capital lease obligation (70,117)            (733,239)       
Deferred pension related items (605,150)          (336,983)       

Total adjustments 214,822           (476,676)       
Net cash used in operating activities (626,758)$        (212,269)$     

Supplemental schedule of noncash capital and related financing activities
Lease payments made by tenant on capital lease obligation 59,812$           717,744$       

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of organization: The Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission (the Coliseum Commission) was 
created pursuant to the Government Code of the State of California (the State) under a Joint Powers 
Agreement (JPA) between the City of Los Angeles (the City), the County of Los Angeles (the County), and the 
Sixth District Agricultural Association or California Science Center (CSC), an institution of the State 
(hereinafter referred to as the member agencies). The Coliseum Commission has a single purpose; to provide 
for the ongoing maintenance and operation of the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum (the Coliseum), opened in 
1923, and the Los Angeles Memorial Sports Arena (the Sports Arena), opened in 1959.   
 
On July 29, 2013, a significant change in the management of these facilities occurred when the Coliseum 
Commission and the University of Southern California (USC) executed the Second Amendment to the Lease 
and Agreement (Commission-USC Lease), which transferred to USC the responsibility for the long-term 
operation of the Coliseum and Sports Arena and the capital renewal of the Coliseum.  The Coliseum 
Commission deemed this action to be in the best interest of the community to ensure that the Coliseum, a 
national historic landmark, is upgraded and preserved for current and future generations.  The Commission-
USC Lease expires in 2033, or if all options are exercised, on December 31, 2054, the same date as the 
expiration of the Coliseum Commission’s two leases with the State of California for the Coliseum and Sports 
Arena properties.   
 
Following the commencement of the Commission-USC Lease, the Commission voted in September 2013 to 
enter into an agreement with the County Board of Supervisors Executive Office for that office to assume the 
administrative support functions of the Commission no later than January 1, 2014. On October 8, 2013, the 
Board of Supervisors of the County also approved that agreement.   As of December 14, 2013, the Coliseum 
Commission no longer has any employees. 
 
An amended JPA agreement was fully executed on February 26, 2014, after approval and execution by all 
three member agencies. This amended agreement revised the governance structure, meeting requirements 
and operating arrangements of the Coliseum Commission in view of the change in the level of the daily 
responsibilities of the Coliseum Commission as a result of the Commission-USC Lease. The amended JPA 
agreement changed the voting members from nine to three members.  The Coliseum Commission consists of 
one (1) member appointed by the Mayor of the City of Los Angeles subject to confirmation by the City Council 
of Los Angeles; one (1) member appointed by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Los Angeles; and 
one (1) member appointed by the Governor of the State of California. 
 
In February 1996, under the JPA, the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Association, Inc. (the Association) was 
established as a non-profit 501(c)(3) corporation in the State of California, which is the entity that provided the 
food and beverage operations for the Coliseum Commission until the day-to-day activities of the food and 
beverage operations were transferred to USC under the Commission-USC Lease agreement.   The 
Association is overseen by and for the benefit of the Coliseum Commission, the results of the Association are 
combined with those of the Coliseum Commission (collectively, the Commission). The Association is a 
blended component unit in the financial statements.     
 

A summary of the Commission’s significant accounting policies is as follows: 
 
Financial statement presentation: The financial statements of the Commission have been prepared in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to 
government units and the Commission is accounted for as a proprietary fund. The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting principles. The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  The Commission records 
revenue primarily from rental income from the Commission-USC Lease agreement and other charges for 
services to external users and reports its financial statements under guidance for special purpose entities 
engaged in only business-type activities.  This model allows all financial information for the Commission to be 
reported in a single column in the basic financial statements. 
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Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of the Coliseum Commission and the 
Association.  All material-related party balances and transactions have been eliminated. 
 
The Commission’s financial statements are presented in accordance with the provisions of GASB No. 34 
Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local 
Governments.  GASB Statement No. 34 established standards for external financial reporting for all state and 
local governmental entities.  It requires the classification of net position into three components – net 
investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted.   

 
These classifications are defined as follows: 

 
Net investment in capital assets – This component of net position consists of capital assets, including 
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and is reduced by the outstanding balances of 
any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets.  If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the 
portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds is not included in the calculation of net investment 
in capital assets.  Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net position component as the 
unspent proceeds.  As of June 30, 2017, the Commission had $107,500 net investment in capital assets. 
 
Restricted net position – This component of net position represents restricted assets net of liabilities 
that relate to those specific restricted assets.  A restricted asset is an asset for which constraints have 
been placed on the asset’s use by creditors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments, or as 
a consequence of a restriction established by the reporting government’s own governing body at the time 
a particular fee, charge, levy, or assessment was approved.  These restrictions must be narrower than 
the general purposes for which the reporting government can use its resources.  As of June 30, 2017, the 
Commission had no restricted net position. 
 
Unrestricted net position – When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, restricted 
resources are depleted first before the unrestricted resources are used.  As of June 30, 2017, the 
Commission had $9,346,960 unrestricted net deficit.   
 
As of June 30, 2017, the Commission has a net deficit of $9.24 million.  The deficit balance is primarily 
from noncurrent liabilities for the postretirement healthcare plan, net pension liability, straight-line rent 
accrual, the USC line of credit, the liability related to International Alliance of Theatrical Stage Employees 
(IATSE), and the liability for legal payments.  Under the Commission-USC Lease, USC will pay the 
postretirement healthcare plan liabilities and the rent liabilities over time, but the $2.76 million net pension 
liability, the $1.82 million USC line of credit, the $0.14 million accounts payable liability of the IATSE 
payments, and the $0.17 million liability for legal expenses will remain the responsibility of the 
Commission.  The Commission is currently evaluating options to reduce the net deficit.  

 
Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents represent funds held in the County of Los Angeles 
Treasury Pool.  Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash or so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes 
in value because of changes in interest rates, and have an original maturity of three months or less.  For 
purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash represents balances that can be readily withdrawn without 
substantial notice or penalty.   
 
Accounts receivable: Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for 
doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts. Management determines the allowance 
for doubtful accounts by regularly evaluating individual customer receivables and considering a customer’s 
financial condition and credit history and current economic conditions. An account receivable is considered 
past due if any portion of the receivable balance is outstanding for more than 30 days.  
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Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Accounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of accounts receivable previously 
written off are recorded when received. 
 
Prepaid expenses: Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid expenses in the accompanying statement of net position (deficit). The majority of the 
Commission’s prepaid expenses are related to legal fees.  
 
Capital assets: Capital assets are stated at cost or at the estimated fair value at the date of contribution, if 
contributed. 
 
Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis to the nearest whole month, starting in the year of 
acquisition, over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, ranging from three to 10 years for 
equipment and 20 years for building improvements and structures. Maintenance and repair costs are 
expensed when incurred. Upon sale or other disposition, any gain or loss is included in income. 
 
Straight-line rent accrual: Rent expense is recorded on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease with 
the State. Amounts recorded as expense over amounts paid are recorded as straight-line rent accrual in the 
statement of net position (deficit).   
 
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources:  Pursuant to GASB 63 “Financial Reporting of Deferred 
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position”, and GASB 65 “Items Previously 
Reported as Assets and Liabilities”, the Commission recognizes deferred outflows of resources and/or 
deferred inflows of resources in the statement of net position.  
 
In addition to assets, the financial statements report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.  
Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and will 
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditures) until then. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the financial statements report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.  
Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and will 
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time, except for pension related deferred 
inflows of resources, which will be recognized as a credit to expense. 
 
Specific disclosures of items representing deferred outflows and inflows of resources appear in Note 6. 
 
Operating revenues and operating expenses: Operating revenues include gross receipts from rent due 
from its only tenant, USC, which is comprised of a fixed monthly operating allowance, and amounts equal to 
the Commission’s payment obligations for: 1) retiree healthcare; 2) rent to the State; and 3) a lease 
agreement with Kinetic Leasing.  Operating expenses represent the direct and indirect costs for the 
operations of the Commission during the year. Revenues and expenses outside the normal course of 
operations are recorded as nonoperating revenues and expenses in the statement of revenues, expenses 
and changes in fund net position (deficit). Nonoperating revenues and expenses consist primarily of interest 
income, interest expense and pension expense. 
 
Taxation: As a joint powers authority, the Commission is not subject to income or franchise taxation by 
federal or state authorities. The Association is recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as a tax-
exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. 
 
Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates and assumptions made by management 
include, but are not limited to, contingent assets and liabilities, allowance for uncollectible receivables, 
inventory reserves and the recoverability of the carrying value of long-lived assets. 
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Note 1.         Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Pronouncement issued and implemented during the year ended June 30, 2017:  
 
In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 74, “Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other 
Than Pension Plans.”  This Statement is to improve the usefulness of information about postemployment 
benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB) included in the general purpose 
external financial reports of state and local governmental OPEB plans for making decisions and assessing 
accountability.  This Statement replaces Statements No. 43, “Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit 
Plans Other Than Pension Plans”, as amended, and No. 57, “OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and 
Agent Multiple-Employer Plans”.  It also includes requirements for defined contribution OPEB plans that 
replace the requirements for those OPEB plans in Statement No 25, “Financial Reporting for Defined Pension 
Plans and Note Disclosure for Defined Contribution Plans”, as amended, Statement 43, and Statement. 50, 
“Pension Disclosures”.  The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for reporting 
periods beginning after June 15, 2016.  Implementation of the GASB Statement No. 74 did not have an 
impact on the Commission’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
In August 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 77, “Tax Abatement Disclosures.”  This Statement is to improve 
financial reporting by giving users of financial statements essential information that is not consistently or 
comprehensively reported to the public at present.  Disclosures of information about the nature and 
magnitude of tax abatements will make these transactions more transparent to financial statement users, and 
the users will be better equipped to understand (1) how tax abatements affect a government’s future ability to 
raise resources and meet its financial obligations and (2) the impact those abatements have on government’s 
financial position and economic condition.  The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial 
statements for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015.  Implementation of the GASB Statement 
No. 77 did not have an impact on the Commission’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2017.   
 
In December 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 78, “Pensions Provided Through Certain Multiple-Employer 
Defined Benefit Pension Plans.”  This Statement is to address a practice issue regarding the scope and 
applicability of Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions”.  This Statement amends 
the scope and applicability of Statement No. 68 to exclude pensions provided by employees of state or local 
government employers through a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plant that (1) is not a 
state or local government pension plan, (2) is used to provide defined benefit pensions both to employees of 
state or local governmental employers and to employees of employers that are not state or local 
governmental employers, and (3) has no predominant state or local governmental employer (either 
individually or collectively with other state or local governmental employers that provide pensions through the 
pension plan).  The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2015.  Implementation of the GASB Statement No. 78 did not have an impact 
on the Commission’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.  
 
In January 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 80, “Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units – 
An amendment of GASB Statement No. 14”.  The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting 
by clarifying the financial statement presentation requirements for certain components units. This Statement 
amends the blending requirements established in paragraph 53 of Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting 
Entity, as amended.  The provisions of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 
15, 2016.  Implementation of the GASB Statement No. 80 did not have an impact on the Commission’s 
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 82. “Pension Issues-An amendment of GASB Statements No. 
67, No. 68, and No. 73”.  The objective of this Statement is to address certain issues that have been raised 
with respect to Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pensions, No. 68, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Pensions, and No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets 
That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement No. 68 and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB 
Statements No. 67 and No. 68.  The provisions of the GASB Statement No. 82 did not have an impact on the 
Commission’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 
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Note 2. Component Units of the Commission 
 
The following is the condensed combining detail for the statement of net position (deficit) as of June 30, 2017: 

Coliseum
Commission Association Eliminations Combined

Current assets 159,643  $        146,624  $           -$                     306,267  $        
Deferred rent receivable 658,292            -                       -                       658,292            
Capital assets 107,500            -                       -                       107,500            

Total assets 925,435            146,624               -                       1,072,059         

Deferred Outflows of Resources 594,623            594,623            

Current liabilities 25,486              -                       -                       25,486              
Long-term liabilities 10,648,252       -                       -                       10,648,252       

Total liabilities 10,673,738       -                       -                       10,673,738       

Deferred Inflows of Resources 232,404            232,404            

Net investment in capital assets 107,500            -                       -                       107,500            
Unrestricted net position (9,493,584)        146,624               -                       (9,346,960)        

Total net position (deficit) (9,386,084)  $    146,624  $           -$                     (9,239,460)  $    

 
The following is the condensed combining detail for the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in 
fund net position (deficit) for the year ended June 30, 2017: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

` Coliseum
Commission Association Eliminations Combined

Operating revenues:
Rental revenue from related party 1,342,258$       -$                     -$                     1,342,258$       
Other income 497,945            1,569                   -                       499,514            

Total operating revenues 1,840,203         1,569                   -                       1,841,772         

Operating expenses:
Other operating expenses 1,434,396         20                        -                       1,434,416         
Rental expense to related party 1,248,936         -                       -                       1,248,936         

Total operating expenses 2,683,332         20                        -                       2,683,352         
Operating Gain (Loss) (843,129)           1,549                   -                       (841,580)           

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Other nonoperating expenses 42,498              -                       -                       42,498              

Total nonoperating 
expenses 42,498              -                       -                       42,498              

Change in net position (800,631)           1,549                   -                       (799,082)           

Beginning net position (8,585,453)        145,075               -                       (8,440,378)        
Ending net position (deficit) (9,386,084)$      146,624$             -$                     (9,239,460)$      
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Note 2.         Component Units of the Commission (Continued) 
 
The following is the condensed combining detail for the statement of cash flows for the year ended June 30, 
2017: 

 
 

Note 3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
As of June 30, 2017, $277,619 was invested in the County of Los Angeles Investment Pool. In accordance 
with the California Government Code, cash balances of the Commission are deposited with and pooled and 
invested by the Los Angeles County Treasurer for the purpose of increasing interest earnings through 
investment activities.  Interest earned on pooled investments is deposited to participating funds based upon 
each fund’s average daily balance during the allocation period.   
 
Statutes authorize the County of Los Angeles to invest pooled investments in in obligations of the United 
States Treasury, federal agencies, State and local agencies, municipalities, asset-backed securities, bankers’ 
acceptances, commercial paper rated A-1 by Standard & Poor’s Global Rating  Services (S&P) or P-1 by 
Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s), and F-1 by Fitch, negotiable certificates of deposit, medium-term notes, 
corporate notes, repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, time deposits, shares of beneficial 
interest of a Joint Powers Authority that invests in authorized securities, shares of beneficial interest issued by 
diversified management companies known as money market mutual funds (MMF) registered with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the State of California’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), 
interest rate swaps, and supranational  institutions. 

 
Investments are stated at fair value and are valued on a monthly basis.  The Treasurer categorizes its fair 
value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting 
principles.  Securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices quoted in active 
markets for those securities.  Securities classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using other 
observable inputs such as matrix pricing techniques or based on quoted prices for assets in markets that are 
not active.  Matrix Pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’ relationship to benchmark 
quoted prices.  Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. Securities classified in Level 3 are valued 
using the income approach such as discounted cash flow techniques.  Investment in an external government 
investment pool is not subject to reporting within the level hierarchy. 
 
Investment policies and associated risk factors applicable to the Commission are included in the County of 
Los Angeles’ Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2017.  Detailed deposit 
and investment risk disclosures are included in Note 5 of the County of Los Angeles’ Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report. 
 
Note 4. Capital Assets 
 
The only asset remaining is the parcel of land related to the freeway sign located at 3843 S. Grand Avenue.  
This parcel of land is being used as collateral for a line of credit with USC (see Note 5). 
 

 July 1, 2016 Additions Impairment Disposals June 30, 2017 
Non-depreciable:      

Land – parking lots and freeway sign  $    107,500   $           -     $             -     $              -     $        107,500  
      

Total  $    107,500   $           -     $             -     $              -     $        107,500  
 

Coliseum
Commission Association Combined

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (626,738)  $          (20)  $                   (626,758)  $       
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 370,272               -                       370,272            

534,105               -                       534,105            
277,639  $           (20)  $                   277,619  $        Ending cash and cash equivalents balances

Beginning cash and cash equivalents balances
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Note 5. Long-Term Debt 
 
USC line of credit: In March 2013, the Commission executed an agreement with USC providing a line of 
credit for $1.5 million secured by the Commission’s real property, the freeway sign located at 3843 S. Grand 
Avenue, Los Angeles, California.  The outstanding balance bears an interest rate of 6 percent per annum and 
originally was due on May 16, 2014. However, as part of the Commission-USC Lease, the agreement was 
amended to extend the maturity date to July 29, 2023. 
 
Video board note payable: The Commission purchased a video board for the Coliseum Commission for 
approximately $5.7 million during the year ended June 30, 2011. The Commission paid $2.28 million in cash 
on the purchase and financed the remaining balance of $3.42 million. Monthly payments of $59,812 
commenced in August 2011. The note bears interest at 1.9 percent per annum and is due over five years. In 
connection with the Commission-USC Lease, USC agreed to pay the note, on a monthly basis, directly to the 
lender on behalf of the Commission until its maturity.  The note fully matured during fiscal year 2016-2017. 
 
Current year activity of long-term debt during the fiscal year ended June 30 is as follows: 
 

     
Non-Cash 

 
Payments 

  

 
June 30, 2016 

 
Additions 

 
Additions (Deduction) 

 
Made by USC 

 
June 30, 2017 

Long-term debt: 
         USC line of credit  $    1,716,677    

 
 $                -    

 
 $              107,392    

 
 $                 -    

 
 $     1,824,069    

Video board             59,717                        -                                 -              (59,717)                 0 

Total term debt  $    1,776,394    
 

 $                -    
 

 $              107,392    
 

 $     ( 59,717)   
 

 $     1,824,069    

           
Future minimum payments under the agreements at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

     Total  
Years Ending June 30,   Principal   Interest   Payments  

     
2018  $                      - $                      - $                      - 
2019                          -                         -                         - 
2020                          -                         -                         - 
2021                          -                         -                         - 
2022                          -                         -                         - 
Thereafter           1,824,069                            -          1,824,069    

   $      1,824,069    $                     -  $      1,824,069    

      
Note 6. Retirement Pension Plan 
 
Plan Description 
 
The Commission’s former employees were eligible to participate in the California Public Employee Retirement 
System (CalPERS) Miscellaneous Plan, a cost sharing multiple employer pension plan. CalPERS acts as a 
common investment and administrative agent for various local and state governmental agencies within the 
State of California. Benefit provisions and other requirements are established by State statute and by 
employer contract with CalPERS.  The Commission selects optional benefit provisions from the benefit menu 
by contract with CalPERS and adopts those benefits through local ordinance. CalPERS issues publicly 
available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions, 
and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website at www.calpers.ca.gov. 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.calpers.ca.gov/
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Note 6.         Retirement Pension Plan (Continued) 
 
Plan Description (Continued) 
 
Substantially all permanent Commission employees were eligible to participate in the Plan. Benefits vest after 
five years of service. Commission employees may retire at or after age 50 with five years of credited service 
and are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life. The Plan is based on a 2.5 percent 
at age 55 formula allowing employees retiring at age 55 with a minimum of five years of service to receive a 
benefit of 2.5 percent of their yearly salary (based on the average of the highest 36 consecutive months of 
service) multiplied by their number of years of service.  Employees who retire earlier than age 55 receive less 
than 2.5 percent for each year of service. The Plan also provides death benefits. These benefit provisions and 
all other requirements are established by state statute. 

 
 Contributions 
 
 For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Commission’s actuarial determined contributions were $0.  
 

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution 
rates for all public employees be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the 
July 1 following notice of a change in rate.  The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount 
necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by public employees during the year, with an additional 
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.  
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 
 
At June 30, 2017, the Commission reported a liability of $2.76 million for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability in accordance with the parameters of GASB 68 and 71.  The net pension liability was 
measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015, projected forward to the measurement date taking 
into account any significant changes between the valuation date and the measurement date.   At June 30, 
2016, the Commission’s proportionate share was 0.03185%. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Commission recognized pension expense of $209,981.  Pension 
expense represents the change in the net pension liability during the measurement period, adjusted for actual 
contributions and the deferred recognition of changes in investment gain/loss, actuarial gain/loss, actuarial 
assumptions or methods, and plan benefits.  At June 30, 2017, the Commission reported deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

  

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Difference between Expected and Actual Experience $                1,361  $                     - 
Change of Assumptions                          -  16,706 
Net difference between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings 86,951                    

 
                       - 

Differences between Employer Contributions and the Proportionate  
   

 
share of contributions               97,481  

 
          215,698    

Change in Employer’s Proportion 335,856  
 

                       - 
Pension Contributions made subsequent to the Measurement Date  72,974                         - 

TOTAL  $           594,623  
 

 $        232,404 

      
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources above represent the unamortized portion of 
changes to net pension liability to be recognized in future periods in a systematic and rational manner in 
accordance with GASB 68. 
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Note 6.        Retirement Pension Plan (Continued) 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 
 
Amounts currently reported as deferred inflows and outflows of resources, other than contributions related to 
pension, will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

   

Deferred 
(Inflows)/Outflows  

of Resources 
Year Ended June 30: 

  
 

2018 
 

 $                 142.198 

 
2019 

 
                    109,410 

 
2020 

 
                      15,115 

 
2021 

 
                      22,521          

 
2022 

 
                                - 

 
Thereafter 

 
                                -   

 
Actuarial Assumptions 
 

Valuation Timing June 30, 2015 rolled forward to June 30, 2016 
Measurement Date June 30, 2015 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 
Inflation  2.75% 
Investment Rate of Return 7.50%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation 
Projected salary increase Varies depending on age, service, and type of employment 
Discount Rate 7.50% as of June 30, 2016  
 Net of pension plan, investment and administrative expense, 

including inflation 
Post Retirement Benefit Increase Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing Power Protection 

Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 2.75% thereafter 
Mortality Rate Table Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all Funds.  The 

table includes 20 years of mortality improvements using Society 
of Actuaries Scale BB. 

Experience Study Covers the fiscal years 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary 
increase, mortality and retirement rates. 

 
Change in Assumptions 
 
The discount rate was changed from 7.50% to 7.65% to be consistent with GASB 68 which requires the 
discount rate to include administrative expenses. 
 
Discount Rate 
 

 The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (7.65%, net of investment expenses) was 
determined using a building block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of 
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major 
asset class.   

 
 In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-

term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows.  Using historical returns of 
all funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short term (first 10 
years) and the long term (11-60 years) using a building block approach.  Using the expected nominal returns 
for both short term and long term, the present value of benefits was calculated.  The expected rate of return 
was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits 
of cash flows as the one calculated using both short term and long term returns.   
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Note 6.        Retirement Pension Plan (Continued) 
 
Discount Rate (Continued) 

 
The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and 
rounded to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 
 

 The table below reflects the long term expected real rate of return by asset class.  The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. 

  
Real Return Real Returns 

 Asset Class Target Allocation Years 1 – 10(1) Years 11+(2)  
 
Global Equity  51.0% 5.25% 5.71% 
Global Debt Securities  20.0% 0.99%  2.43% 
Inflation sensitive  6.0% 0.45% 3.36%  
Private Equity  10.0% 6.83%  6.95% 
Real Estate  10.0% 4.50% 5.13% 
Infrastructure and Forestland  2.0% 4.50%  5.09% 
Liquidity  1.0% -0.55%  -1.05% 

  
(1) An expected inflation rate of 2.5% used for this period. 
(2) An expected inflation rate of 3.0% used for this period. 

 
Sensitivity of the Commission’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate 
 
The following represents the Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset) calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.65%, as well as what the Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.65%) or 
1-percentage point higher (8.65%) than the current rate:  
 
 1% Discount 1% 
 Decrease Rate Increase 
 (6.65%) (7.65%) (8.65%) 
 

 Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ 4,374,464 $ 2,756,150 $ 1,418,694 
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

 
Detailed information about CalPERS fiduciary net position as of June 30, 2017 is available in a separately 
issued CalPERS financial report, which can be found at www.calpers.ca.gov.  
 
Note 7. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions 
 
Plan description: The Commission administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (the 
Retiree Health Plan). The plan provides lifetime healthcare insurance for retirees and their spouses through 
the Commission’s group health insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members. To become 
eligible to retire, an employee must have been 50 years of age or higher with five or more years vested in 
CalPERS (see Note 6). The Retiree Health Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report. As of July 
29, 2013, all active employees were removed from the plan, and the obligation for payment of all premiums 
for all retired participants was transferred to USC.  In connection with the Commission-USC Lease, the 
Commission still pays premiums but is reimbursed by USC.  
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.calpers.ca.gov/
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Note 7.           Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension (Continued) 
 
Retirees can choose among several options: PPO, HMO or EPO. All options permit Medicare supplement 
plans for those members eligible for Medicare. Health plans offered, covered benefits, monthly rates and co-
payments are determined by the CalPERS Board, which reviews health plan contracts annually. The following 
HMO and PPO plans were available during fiscal years 2011 to 2017: 
 

 Basic HMO Plans (Blue Shield Access+, Blue Shield Net Value or Kaiser Permanente). 
 Basic PPO Plans (PERS Select, PERS Choice and PERSCare).  

 
The costs of these medical plans are shared by the Commission and the retiree. 
 
Funding policy: The Commission pays the costs of these medical plans as they are incurred. As of June 30, 
2017, no trust or retirement fund was established or maintained to secure the employer’s share of this 
postemployment benefit. Effective February 2012, the Commission established contribution rates of 
78 percent for employer and 22 percent for employee. Prior to this, the employer/employee contribution rates 
varied slightly depending upon the specific plan chosen by the retiree. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2017, the Commission contributed $152,070 to the plan. 
 
Annual OPEB cost and net OPEB obligation: The Commission’s annual other postemployment benefit 
(OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer.  The 
Commission has elected to calculate the ARC and related information using the alternative measurement 
method permitted by GASB Statement No. 45 for employers in plans with fewer than 100 total plan members. 
The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost 
each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 15 
years.  
 
The following table shows the components of the Commission’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount 
actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the Commission’s net OPEB obligation to the Retiree Health 
Plan: 

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016
Calculation of Interest on Net OPEB Obligation:

Net OPEB obligation at end of prior year 3,480,140  $    3,149,942  $    
Employer’s investment rate of return 4.50% 4.50%
Interest on net OPEB obligation 156,606          141,747          

Calculation of Annual OPEB Cost:
ARC 349,027          349,027          
Interest on net OPEB obligation 156,606          141,747          

Annual OPEB cost 505,633  $       490,774  $       

Calculation of Net OPEB Obligation:
Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year 3,480,140  $    3,149,942  $    
Annual OPEB cost 505,633          490,774          
Less actual employer contributions (152,070)         (160,576)         

Net OPEB obligation at end of year 3,833,703  $    3,480,140  $     
 
The Commission’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the 
net OPEB obligation for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015 were as follows: 
 

Annual Percentage of Net
OPEB Annual OPEB OPEB

Fiscal Year Ended Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2015 551,119$              27.32% 3,149,942$          
June 30, 2016 490,774                32.72% 3,480,140             
June 30, 2017 505,633                30.08% 3,833,703              
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Note 7.           Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension (Continued) 
 
Funded status and funding progress: As of June 30, 2016, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was 
$3,748,395, all of which was unfunded. Because all employees were transferred to USC, there is no longer 
any covered payroll.  
 
The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined 
regarding the funded status of the plan and the ARCs of the employer are subject to continual revision, as 
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The 
schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the 
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 
 
Methods and assumptions: Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the 
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of 
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between 
the employer and plan members to that point. The methods and assumptions used include techniques that 
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value 
of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
 
The following simplifying assumptions were made: 

 
Retirement age: The plan covers only those currently retired.  The Commission no longer has any active 
employees. 
 
Marital status: Marital status of members at the calculation date was assumed to continue throughout 
retirement. 
 
Mortality: Life expectancies were based on the Group Annuity Mortality Table, Combined Rates. 
 
Turnover: None was assumed. 
 
Healthcare cost trend rate: The expected rate of increase in healthcare insurance premiums was based 
on projections of the Office of the Actuary at the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services. A rate of 10 
percent initially, reduced to an ultimate rate of 5 percent after 10 years, was used. 
 
Health insurance premiums: 2014 health insurance premiums for retirees were used as the basis for 
calculation of the present value of total benefits to be paid. 
 
Inflation rate: No inflation assumption was made. 
 
Payroll growth rate: No long-term payroll growth assumption was made. 
 

Based on the expected returns of the Commission’s short-term investment portfolio, a discount rate of 
4.5 percent was used. In addition, a projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis over 
15 years. 
 
Note 8. Leases 
 
Leases: The Coliseum and Sports Arena ground leases were extended by the Commission on September 3, 
2003 to continue through December 31, 2054. The rental terms for the extended leases were agreed to by the 
Commission and State on February 13, 2008. The aggregate annual rent is $1,000,000, beginning January 1, 
2008 and ending December 31, 2015, and $1,300,000, beginning January 1, 2016 and ending December 31, 
2054, with the annual amount beginning January 1, 2017 to be adjusted according to the U.S. Consumer 
Price Index.  
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Note 8.         Leases (Continued) 
 
In addition to the annual base rents, the Commission must pay to the State a portion of any revenue received 
for naming rights of the Coliseum and the Sports Arena in the amounts of 3.125 percent and 1.875 percent, 
respectively. The naming rights provision of the agreement also applies to the Commission-USC lease.  For 
the year ended June 30, 2017, the Commission did not receive any revenue related to naming rights of the 
Coliseum or the Sports Arena. 
 
Future minimum payments under these agreements at June 30, 2017 are as follows:  
 

Years Ending June 30,   Amount  
2018   $            1,300,000  
2019          1,300,000  
2020          1,300,000  
2021          1,300,000  
2022          1,300,000  
2023-2027          6,500,000  
2028-2032          6,500,000  
2033-2037          6,500,000  
2038-2042          6,500,000  
2043-2047          6,500,000  
2048-2052          6,500,000  
2053-2054          2,600,000  

   $          48,100,000  
    

Rent expense is recorded on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Amounts expensed in excess of 
amounts paid are recorded as straight-line rent accrual liability. Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 
2017 was $1,248,936, which is related to the Coliseum and Sports Arena rent expense. As a result, the 
Commission has recorded straight-line rent accrual liability of $1,914,894 as of June 30, 2017. Because USC 
pays the rent directly to the State, the Commission also recognizes rental revenue on a straight-line basis and 
recognized a deferred rent receivable of $658,292 for the difference between the actual payments and the 
amount recognized as revenue.  
 
Sublease with primary tenant: The Commission has a sublease agreement with USC (the Commission-
USC lease) for the use of the Coliseum and Sports Arena.  On July 25, 2013, the Commission and USC 
executed an amended and restated sublease that transferred the operations and all associated assets of both 
the Coliseum and the Sports Arena to USC on July 29, 2013 through at least July 29, 2033, with options for 
USC to extend through December 31, 2054 (the date that the current lease with the State of California 
expires). The sublease also provides USC with full control of the property located at 3843 S.  Grand Avenue 
(the Freeway Sign). In addition, USC has obtained first rights to negotiate with the State of California to 
extend the sublease beyond December 31, 2054. In return, USC is required to make specific capital 
improvements to the Coliseum, which are estimated to cost in excess of $70 million, to be completed before 
the Centennial Anniversary of the Coliseum on July 29, 2023.  
 
Additional terms of the Commission-USC Lease require USC to: (1) offer a minimum of six months 
employment to current Commission employees; (2) make future rent payments to the State on behalf of the 
Commission; (3) make future monthly payments on the $2.1 million note payable with Kinetic Leasing for the 
video board on behalf of the Commission; (4) reimburse the Commission for retiree healthcare premiums 
(estimated $25,000 per month); (5) pay $300,000 for recent sound system upgrades (in three annual 
$100,000 installments); (6) relieve the Commission of the $471,830 liability to USC for self-funded capital 
improvements on the Coliseum; (7) extend the term on the Coliseum Note Payable to USC (see Notes 5 and 
8); and (8) provide the Commission with a monthly allowance for the Commission’s general operating 
expenses.  The total monthly allowance, including a trademark royalty of $1,667, was set at  
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Note 8.         Leases (Continued) 
 
$25,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017; however, future amounts will be determined based on 
annual budget deliberations with USC.  
 
Note 9. Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Collective bargaining agreements: The Coliseum Commission had two collective bargaining agreements 
(CBA), and the Association had one CBA. The Coliseum Commission CBAs were with IATSE Local 33 and 
Service Employees International Union (SEIU) Local 1877. The IATSE CBA covered employees who 
performed load-in, setting, striking, load-out operating and preventive maintenance duties in connection with 
performance-related equipment for those events presented or otherwise sponsored and produced by the 
Commission or tenants. The IATSE CBA expired on July 28, 2013. The SEIU CBA was effective January 1, 
2013 through December 31, 2013, and was automatically terminated upon management transfer of the 
facilities to USC on July 28, 2013. The SEIU CBA covers employees who performed janitorial services. The 
Association CBA with the Unite Here Local 11 union was extended through June 30, 2013 and continued on a 
month-to-month basis until July 28, 2013, at which time it was terminated. The CBA with Unite Here covered 
most food service employees.  
 
On October 30, 2013, the Commission received a claim letter from the IATSE Pension Trust alleging that the 
Coliseum Commission/Association has incurred a pension trust fund withdrawal liability of $378,102. The 
balance of the accrued liability for $142,529 has been recorded in other long term liabilities in the statement of 
net position (deficit).   
 
The Commission entered into an agreement with legal counsel to pay fees incurred totaling approximately 
$175,000 over a three year period, without interest, beginning in June 2017. The Commission established a 
long term liability and recognized the full amount as legal expenses in fiscal year 2016-2017. 
 
The Commission is exposed to claims encountered in the normal course of business. In the opinion of 
management, the resolution of these matters, except as discussed above, will be covered by insurance 
and/or will not have a material adverse effect on the Commission’s net position or results of operations. 
 
Note 10. Subsequent Events 
 
Subsequent events have been evaluated through January 5, 2018, which is the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued. 
 
In November 2017, the Commission accepted a legal settlement regarding a suit against prior event 
promoters.  As part of the settlement, the Commission received $2 million in November 2017 and are 
expected to receive an additional $1.5 million over the next 4 years.  
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Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Year Ended June 30, 2017

6/30/2016 6/30/2015 06/30/2014

Pension Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension liability 78.40% 78.40% 89.68%

Commission's proportionate share of the collective net pension liability  $2,756,150  $2,013,993  $1,233,288 

Commission's proportionate share as percentage of the collective net pension liability 0.03185% 0.02934% 0.01982%

Covered Employee Payroll (1) $0 $0 $0 

Commission's proportionate share of the collective net pension liability as a  
percentage of covered payroll

NA NA NA

Schedule of Commission's Contributions
Year Ended June 30, 2017

2017 2016 2015

Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)  $     72,974  $     49,405  $     14,851 
Less: Contributions in relation to the ADC  $     72,974  $     49,405  $     14,851 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $0 $0 $0 

Covered Employee Payroll (1) 0 0 0

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll NA NA NA

(1) The Commission no longer has any employees.
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Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Funding Progress for Retirement Healthcare
Year Ended June 30, 2017

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a

Actuarial Actuarial Liability (AAL), Unfunded Percent of
Valuation Value of Simplified AAL Funded Covered Covered
Date Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

June 30, 2015 -             4,590,043         4,590,043     0% NA NA
June 30, 2016 -             3,748,395         3,748,395     0% NA NA
June 30, 2017 -             3,748,395         3,748,395     0% NA NA  
 
The schedule of funding progress presents multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial value 
of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 
The Commission obtains an actuarial valuation on a bi-annual basis. 
 



 

                               21250 Hawthorne Blvd. Suite 150   Telephone:  310.792.4640                                               

            Torrance, CA  90503       Facsimile: 310.792.4331    

             www.bcawatsonrice.com 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS  

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
To the Honorable Members 
Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 
Los Angeles, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the Los Angeles Memorial 
Coliseum Commission (the Commission) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to 
the basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated January 5, 2018.   
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements, we considered the Commission’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission’s internal control.   
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the basic financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our 
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be 
material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Commission’s basic financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, and contracts, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of the basic financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards.   

http://www.bcawatsonrice.com/
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Restriction on Use 
 
This report is intended for the information and use of the Members of the Commission, management and 
others within the Commission, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 
 
 
 

 
Torrance, CA 
January 5, 2018 
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AGENDA ITEM #10 

 
LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
THOMAS SAYLES 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
RECEIVE and FILE the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum General Manager’s report. 
 
Overview: 
 
USC’s Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum General Manager’s Report was received by the Commission’s 
Chief Administrative Officer from Senior Vice President, University Relations, Thomas Sayles. The report 
summarizes event operations and planned and in-progress projects (for the General Manager’s Report, see 
Attachment 10.1). 



 

3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA 90037 • Tel: 213 747 7111 • Fax: 213 764 9346 

University Coliseum Management Report 
February 22, 2018 

 
 

1. EVENT OPERATIONS 
A. Completed Coliseum Events – (Period Oct. 15 - Jan. 6, 2018): 

i. Notable events include: 
i. Camp Flog Gnaw Music Festival (Oct. 28-29) 
ii. USC Football vs Arizona (Nov. 4) 
iii. LA Rams Football vs Houston Texans (Nov. 12) 
iv. USC vs UCLA (Nov. 18) 
v. LA Rams vs New Orleans Saints (Nov. 26) 
vi. LA Rams vs Philadelphia Eagles (Dec. 10) 
vii. LA Rams vs San Francisco 49’ers (Dec. 31) 
viii. LA Rams vs Atlanta Falcons (Jan. 6) 

  
ii. Days of Use and Attendance: 

 
i. Monthly Year Over Year Comparison: 

a. October 2017     9 Days in use       236,730 Attendance 
October 2016        9 Days in use       243,925 Attendance 
 

b. November 2017    5 Days in use       235,967 Attendance 
November 2016  16 Days in use       331,527 Attendance 
 

c. December 2017    5 Days in use       120,036 Attendance 
December 2016    8 Days in use       133,243 Attendance 
 

ii. Annual Year Over Year Comparison: 
a. 2017                129 Days in use   1,371,928 Attendance  
b. 2016                 157 Days in use       1,247,919 Attendance 

 
iii. Cumulative 1923 – 2017: 

a. 4,668 Days in use   118,794,101 Attendance 

Note – a complete list of all events and attendance held in 2017 will be provided with the University Coliseum 
Semi-Annual Report. 
 

B. In Progress/Upcoming, Large Events planned for 2018… 
i. USC Football vs UNLV (Sept. 1) 

ii. USC Football vs Washington State (Sept. 21) 
iii. USC Football vs Colorado (Oct. 13) 
iv. USC Football vs Arizona State (Oct. 27) 
v. USC Football vs California (November 10) 

vi. USC Football vs Notre Dame (Nov. 24) 
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vii. 9 LA Rams Football games (dates TBD) 
 

2. PROJECTS REQUIRING COLISEUM COMMISSION APPROVAL (Those that materially affect the 
exterior structure or appearance of the Coliseum or Coliseum Property, or the historical significance 
of the Coliseum…or, are structural in nature…) 

 
A. Coliseum Renovation Project, approved by the Commission July 28, 2016… 

 
i. 2017 Pre-Construction Work ... 

a. West Administration Building...  
i. On-going...work began March 2017, targeted completion 

date by March 1 
 

ii. Primary Project Work Overview... 
a. Work commencing early January immediately after the last Rams 

home game this season.  Work shall continue for approximately 18 
months (Jan. 2018 – July 2019) 

 
b. Stadium impacted areas shall be south side of stadium from section 

4 to section 10, the south yard level between Gates 4 and 11, and 
the Coliseum field.  The building will have limited operations 
during this time. 

 
c. During the 2018 football season, a temporary press box will be 

installed and the field cleared to host USC and Rams football games.  
Construction work will occur during a football game week Monday-
Thursday, paused for the facility to host the weekend game, then 
resumed the following Monday. 

 
d. While the construction will have a large impact on the stadium for 

18 months, we will still be able to host events on a limited scale, 
including the Coliseum Commission’s eight designated Public 
Interest Events.  The requirements for each event will need to be 
evaluated before final approval can be given; for example, if the set 
up and areas of use for the Memorial Day event and the 4th of July 
Celebration remain the same as in 2017, these events will be able 
to take place. 
 

e. There is a new community hotline number set up for local 
residents to call in their concerns or to have their questions 
answered. The number: 213-798-4828 

 
iii. Monthly Update – please see attached Exhibit A. 

 
iv. West Administration Building 

a. Scope – a two-story out-building is under construction on the 
southwest portion of the property.  When complete, the ground 



floor will serve as a warehouse while the 2nd floor will house the 
bulk of the Coliseum Management staff. 

b. Work remains on schedule to be completed by March 1. 
c. Please see attached Exhibits B and C. 

 
 

B. Site Upgrades and Improvements 
i. Nothing to report  

C. Infrastructure and Maintenance Projects...  
i. Nothing to report 

 
Note: A complete, itemized list of capital improvement items and associated costs for the fiscal will be 
provided with the University/Coliseum Semi-Annual Report. 
 

3. OTHER ITEMS 
 

A. Nothing to report 

END OF REPORT 
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PROJECT COMPLETION TARGET: AUGUST 2019

At this point, the project 
remains on target to be 
completed by the start of 
the August 2019 football 
season and is currently in 
the demolition phase.



 Start of primary construction January 8.
 Removal of salvageable items from press box, concourse and street level in 

construction zone.
 Protective fabric and base laid over football field.
 Two tower cranes erected.
 10,000 seats, and concrete from the lower-third of the stadium removed.
 Press box structure and upper two-thirds of stadium concrete being demolished.
 Abatement to be completed by end of January.

PROGRESS SINCE PREVIOUS MEETING



WORK TARGETED FOR NEXT 30 DAYS



LABOR AND SUBCONTRACTOR UPDATE

5 Subcontractors Currently Working On-Site:
 GGG (Women-owned)
 Calex
 Conco
 Murray
 Rosendin

Local Work Hire:
 60 Craft Workers On-Site (Daily Average)
 Setting up LCP Tracker



DIVERSE BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UTILIZATION

Community Outreach Event: 
October 11, 2017

GGG Demolition (Women-Owned)
 Demolition and Abatement scopes of work
 $3 million and $240,000, respectively

Setting up B2G Now to track and report 
business enterprise utilization



ENGAGED WITH COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATIONS

 National Association of Minority 
Contractors in LA

 Latin Business Association
 LA Latino Chamber of Commerce
 National Association of Women Business 

Owners
 Veteran Business Alliance
 Women Business Enterprise Council West
 Southern CA Minority Supplier Diversity 

Council
 Transportation Business Advisory Council

 Minority Business Development Agency – LA
 LA County Dept. of Business Affairs
 Supervisor Mark Ridley-Thomas Office
 Councilman Curren Price’s Office
 City of LA Business Assistance Virtual 

Network
 Goldman Sach’s 10,000 Small Businesses
 USC Small Business Diversity Office
 SBA
 and many others.



OUTREACH ADVERTISING
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BOXING COMPETITION 

 

        
AGENDA ITEM #11 

 
UPDATE ON LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL SPORTS ARENA REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

 
BENNY TRAN 

 
 

Staff Recommendation:  
 
RECEIVE and FILE the Los Angeles Football Club report. 
 
For the Los Angeles Football Club report on stadium construction status and on its local worker hire 
program, see Attachment 11.1. 
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January 12, 2018 
 
Al Naipo 
Chief Administrative Officer 
Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 
Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration 
500 W. Temple Street, Room 383 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 
 
Re:  Los Angeles Football Club MBE/WBE and Local Hire quarterly update 
 
Dear Mr. Naipo,  
 
The Los Angeles Football Club (“LAFC”) is pleased to provide a quarterly status report on the activities 
related to increasing the MBE/WBE/SBE/DVE opportunities and solicitation of Local Hire in 
conjunction with the construction of the Los Angeles Football Club’s Stadium and Ancillary Facility.  
For the period ending December 31, 2017, LAFC has achieved a 37.6% MBE/DBE/WSB/WBE/DVE 
contract award goal and a 41.7 % local hire percentage for the project to date.   
 
As you are aware, this project has been moving forward on time and is currently in the midst of the 
steel erection and general exterior construction phase. Out of a total of $217.1 million spent to date 
on subcontractors, $81.7 million has been procured by MBE/DBE/SBE/DVE and WBE businesses, and 
there are 1,939 construction workers on site between August 2017 and the beginning of January 
2018.  Construction of the Ancillary Facility has begun and is 45% complete.  Only $3.3 million of 
contracts for the stadium remain to be awarded.   
 
During the past quarter, the project team has continued to target local residents for construction 
opportunities on site.  As a result of this project, to date, PCL contacted 58 local residents to speak to 
them about careers in construction and referred 6 to the Flintridge Pre-Apprenticeship Program. 
 
PCL and its subcontractors sponsored two local residents in the month of August which brings the 
total sponsored to twenty-four individuals for union apprenticeship and membership and there are a 
total of 111 apprentices on the site.  These outreach efforts have been buoyed by the partnership with 
Second Call and their assistance in identifying individuals who are in need of “second chances”.   
 
During this same time period, ongoing local hire outreach efforts included attendance and 
recruitment at the following events: -  
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Los Angeles Football Club MBE/WBE and Local Hire quarterly update 
 

• Compton Parole Resource Fair 
• El Monte PRNN  
• Community Fair at St. Andrews 

 
Overall, to date, 40.36 of the total hours worked on the project to date have been by local hire workers 
and workers from zip codes that are in greater than 150% poverty rate census tracts.  This 
achievement out performs the agreed upon goal of 40% minimum.  A spotlight on one of the local hire 
individuals is attached for your perusal. 
 
With regard to supplier diversity, the awarded contracts to date of $209,559,268 million have resulted 
in $79,720,506 million (38.0%) of  awards to MBE/WBE/SBE/DVE in the following areas: 
 

• Surveying 
• Final Cleaning 
• Tower Crane 
• Site Security 
• Abatement and 

Demolition 
• Earthwork and 

Shoring 
• Fences & Gates 
• Site Wood Decking 
• Site Utilities 
• Asphalt Paving 
• Site Concrete 

• CIP Concrete 
• Precast Concrete 
• Masonry 
• Ancillary Steel & 

Misc. Metals 
• Metal Stairs 
• Railings 
• Elastomeric 

Coating 
• Waterproofing 
• Insulation & Safing 
• Doors Frames & 

Hardware 

• Overhead Doors 
• Bi-Fold Doors 
• Glass & Glazing 
• Operable Glass 

Walls 
• Plaster & Drywall 
• Tile & Stone 
• Signage 
• Demountable 

Seating 
• Loading Dock 

Accessories 

 
 
Overall, LAFC/PCL is pleased to report that we are exceeding the 35% minimum goal for 
MBE/WBE/SBE/DVE vendor inclusion The Ancillary facility construction will also result in continued 
inclusivity with regard to the diversity goals.   
 

Sincerely,  

 

 
BENNY TRAN 
Senior Vice President 
Los Angeles Football Club 
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AGENDA ITEM #12 

 
UPDATE ON CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS IN EXPOSITION PARK 

 
ANA LASSO 

 
  
Staff Recommendation: 
 
RECEIVE and FILE the update on Exposition Park construction projects. 
 
For the Exposition Park Major Capital Projects’ Construction Schedule Overview, please see Attachment 
12.1. 
 
For the Exposition Park Traffic Plan 2018, please see Attachment 12.2. 
 



10/26/2017 1

Quarterly Schedule

Monthly Schedule

Ju
l-1

6

Au
g-

16

Se
p-

16

O
ct

-1
6

N
ov

-1
6

De
c-

16

Ja
n-

17

Fe
b-

17

M
ar

-1
7

Ap
r-

17

M
ay

-1
7

Ju
n-

17

Ju
l-1

7

Au
g-

17

Se
p-

17

O
ct

-1
7

N
ov

-1
7

De
c-

17

Ja
n-

18

Fe
b-

18

M
ar

-1
8

Ap
r-

18

M
ay

-1
8

Ju
n-

18

Ju
l-1

8

Au
g-

18

Se
p-

18

O
ct

-1
8

N
ov

-1
8

De
c-

18

Ja
n-

19

Fe
b-

19

M
ar

-1
9

Ap
r-

19

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
n-

19

Ju
l-1

9

Au
g-

19

Se
p-

19

O
ct

-1
9

N
ov

-1
9

De
c-

19

Ja
n-

20

Fe
b-

20

M
ar

-2
0

Ap
r-

20

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
n-

20

Ju
l-2

0

Au
g-

20

Se
p-

20

O
ct

-2
0

N
ov

-2
0

De
c-

20

Ja
n-

21

Fe
b-

21

M
ar

-2
1

Ap
r-

21

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
n-

21

Ju
l-2

1

Au
g-

21

Se
p-

21

O
ct

-2
1

N
ov

-2
1

De
c-

21

Exterior Paint Project
Security upgrades
HVAC Project

Site Prep/Earthwork
Site Utilities
Tower Crane installation
West Quadrant
North Quadrant
East Quadrant
South Quadrant
Soccer Pitch
Stadium Bowl
Completion Sitework

DWP- Water line expansion along BRL
SoCal Gas- gas line expansion along BRL
Lot 1- playfield relocation (Phase I)
Current playfield construction (Phase II)
Underground parking Structure (South)
Underground parking Structure (North)
Museum Construction

Construction permit received
Construction start
Construction completion
Grand Opening

Construction permit received
Foundation construction start
Modular Building delivered
Building construction completed
County 2nd District field office move-in
County 2nd District field office opened

NHM Butterfly Pavilion

 Second District Constituent Services Building

CAAM

Los Angeles Football Club Project

Lucas Museum of Narrative Art (LMNA)

Completion Date TBD
Completion Date TBD

Q3 2021Q4 2018 Q1 2019 Q4 2019 Q3 2019 Q4 2019 Q1 2020

Exposition Park Major Capital Projects' Construction Schedule Overview

Q3 2016 Q4 2016 Q1 2017 Q2 2017 Q3 2017 Q4 2017 Q1 2018 Q2 2018 Q3 2018 Q4 2021Q2 2020 Q3 2020 Q4 2020 Q1 2021 Q2 2021
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Benchmarks
USC FB Season
LA Rams FB Season

Coliseum Renovation
Peristyle Scoreboard Removal and Replacement
South Tower -Below Grade Construction
South Tower -Elevated Portion
Press box 

Other Stadium Cap X Projects
West Administration Building

≥ 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36
Mobilization and Demolition
Shoring and Mass Excavation
Shuttle Gallery Construction
Endeavour Installation
Aircraft Gallery Construction
Site Work
Major Artifact Installation
Closeout and Punchlist

Q3 2021 Q4 2021

Exposition Park Major Capital Projects' Construction Schedule Overview

Q2 2020 Q3 2020 Q4 2020 Q1 2021 Q2 2021Q1 2019 Q4 2019 Q3 2019 Q4 2019 Q1 2020Q4 2017 Q1 2018 Q2 2018 Q3 2018 Q4 2018Q3 2016 Q4 2016 Q1 2017 Q2 2017 Q3 2017

Preliminary Schedule NO START DATE IS AVAILABLE AT THIS TIME
Samuel Oschin Air and Space Center

Months

USC Coliseum Renovation Project
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Signage 
# 

Type Location Verbiage IN STOCK  

1 CMS Board On MLK & BRL for Eastbound traffic on 
MLK 

EVENT/MUSEUM PARKING; LEFT ON HOOVER X 

2  Two Banners Vermont & 39th St (north and south) North banner- Museum Parking; go to exposition 
turn right 
 
South banner- Museum parking go to MLK turn left 

3 CMS BOARD BRL & Exposition Blvd for eastbound 
traffic 

MUSEUM PARKING STRAIGHT AHEAD RIGHT ON 
FIGUEROA  

X 

4 A Frame with laminate 
changeable sign  

Exposition Blvd & Kinsley Dr. MUSEUM PARKING STRAIGHT AHEAD 

5 CMS board Exposition Blvd. & Figueroa MUSEUM PARKING >>>>>>>>>>> Right on 39th St. X 

6 A Frame with laminate 
changeable sign  

Figueroa & State Dr. for southbound 
traffic 

MUSEUM PARKING STRAIGHT AHEAD 

7 CMS Board Figueroa & 39th St. for southbound 
traffic  

WELCOME TO EXPO PARK; MUSEUM PARKING X 

8 CMS Board 
 

Figueroa & 39th St. for northbound 
traffic  

WELCOME TO EXPO PARK; MUSEUM PARKING X 

9 A Frame with laminate 
changeable sign  

South parking ramp PARKING <<<<<<<<<<<<<<<< 

10 A Frame with laminate 
changeable sign  

In front of CSC bus drop off area BUS DROP OFF ONLY; 20 MIN PARKING 

11 A Frame with laminate 
changeable sign  

In front of NHM bus drop off area BUS DROP OFF ONLY; 20 MIN PARKING 

12 Directional parking sign Exposition Park Dr/BRL Museum Parking >>>>>> 
Museum Parking <<<<<<< 

13 CMS Board MLK & Hoover for eastbound traffic MUSEUM & LAFC PARKING; TURN HERE <<<<<<<<< X 

Daily Traffic Plan Signage  



BUS DROP OFF 

BUS PARKING 

NO VEHICLE/PED ACCESS 

 Traffic Circulation 
 (one way) 
 Traffic Circulation 
 (two way) 
 
 Bus Drop off Zones 
  
 Cone formation 
  
 Parking Attendants 
 
 Directional Signage 
 
 No Vehicle or 
 Pedestrian Access 
 
 Visitor Parking 
 
 LMNA Construction 
 
 New Playfield 
 
 Pedestrian 
 pathways to NHM 
 

LMNA  
CONSTRUCTION 

LMNA  
CONSTRUCTION 

New 
Playfield 

Visitor Parking 

Exposition Park Traffic Plan 2018 (WEEKEND/SPECIAL EVENT) DRAFT (1.18.18)  
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Signage 
# 

Type Location Verbiage IN STOCK 

1 CMS Board On MLK & BRL for Eastbound traffic on MLK Museum Parking Left on Hoover X 

2  CMS Board South Lawn entrance for northbound traffic EVENT PARKING >>>>>>>>>>> X 

3 CMS BOARD BRL & Exposition Blvd for eastbound traffic EVENT PARKING;  RIGHT ON FIGUEROA  X 

4 A Frame with laminate 
changeable sign  

Exposition Blvd & Kinsley Dr. for east bound traffic PARKING STRAIGHT AHEAD 

5 A Frame with laminate 
changeable sign  

Figueroa St. for southbound traffic  PARKING STRAIGHT AHEAD 

6 CMS Board Figueroa & 39th St. for southbound traffic  EVENT/ MUSEUM PARKING >>>>>>>>>>> X 

7 CMS Board Figueroa & 39th St. for northbound traffic  EVENT/ MUSEUM PARKING <<<<<<<<<<<<< X 

8 CMS Board 
 

Jack & Jill on Hoover side 
 

EVENT/ MUSEUM PARKING >>>>>>>>>>> 
 EXIT STRAIGHT AHEAD 

X 

9 A Frame with laminate 
changeable sign  

Northbound traffic off exposition park drive 
entrance/South Coliseum dr.  

EXIT<<<<<<<<<<<<<<<< 

10 A Frame with laminate 
changeable sign  

In front of CSC bus drop off area BUS DROP OFF ONLY; 20 MIN PARKING 

11 A Frame with laminate 
changeable sign  

In front of NHM bus drop off area BUS DROP OFF ONLY; 20 MIN PARKING 

12 A Frame with laminate 
changeable sign  

Figueroa Entrance to Lot 6 EVENT PARKING >>>>>>>>>> 

13 CMS Board MLK & Hoover for west bound traffic EVENT PARKING; TURN HERE >>>>>>>>>>>>>> X 

14 

Special Event Signage  
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AGENDA ITEM #14 

 
CONSIDERATION OF PUBLIC INTEREST EVENT 
MEMORIAL DAY CEREMONY AT THE COLISEUM 

 
AL NAIPO 

 
 
Proposed Action: (Discussion and possible action) 
 
Overview:  For the past two years, the Commission has hosted a Memorial Day ceremony at the Coliseum 
to honor the brave men and women who died in military service for the United States. Last year the brief 
ceremony with remembrances was held on the Peristyle Plaza of the Coliseum.  
 
Volunteers with the World War I Centennial Commission along with USC have offered to assist the 
Commission in coordinating a similar event on Monday, May 28. This year marks the 100th anniversary of 
the World War I Armistice. The Coliseum is a World War I memorial. 
 
Staff recommends that since the Coliseum stands as a memorial to veterans, that the Commission 
considers hosting a Memorial Day ceremony on May 28, 2018 on the Peristyle Plaza as a public interest 
event. 
 
 



 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 
 
 
 

LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION 
3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA  90037 

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission 
Regular Meeting 2/22/18  Page 1 of 1 

 
 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS 
STATE SENATOR 
RICARDO LARA 

ASSEMBLYMEMBER 
REGINALD JONES-SAWYER 

 

AL NAIPO 
INTERIM 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
 

COMMISSION MEMBERS 
 

CITY OF LOS ANGELES 
CURREN D. PRICE, JR. 

PRESIDENT 
 

SOLOMON RIVERA 
 

MARQUEECE HARRIS-DAWSON 
(Alternate) 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
MONA PASQUIL ROGERS 

VICE PRESIDENT 
 

MARK E. PULIDO (Alternate) 
 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS 

 

JANICE HAHN  
 

ANITA DEFRANTZ (Alternate) 

 

 

SITE OF 1932 AND 1984 
OLYMPICS ATHLETICS COMPETITION 
OPENING & CLOSING CEREMONIES 

 

SITE OF 1984 OLYMPICS 
BOXING COMPETITION 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM #15 

 
LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION’S 

2018 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 
 

AL NAIPO 
 

 
Recommended Action: Approve the Commission’s 2018 regular meeting schedule as proposed. 
 
Overview: Pursuant to Section 6 of the Commission’s management agreement, the Commission must hold 
at least one regular meeting each quarter; the date upon which, and the hour and place at which each such 
regular meeting shall be held shall be fixed by resolution of the Commission.  
 
In 2016, the Commission decided that the regular meetings of the Commission shall be held on the fourth 
Thursday of each and every month except July and November, unless cancelled by the Commission or the 
Commission adopts an alternate schedule. 
 
All 2018 regular meetings are proposed to be held at 2:30 p.m. in the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum 
Commission Meeting Room. The proposed regular meeting dates for the calendar year 2018 are as 
follows: 
 

• March 22 
• April 26 
• May 24 
• June 21 
• August 23 
• September 27 
• October 25 
• December 6 
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